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This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for irxlividual properties and districts. See Instructions in How to Complete the National Register of
Historic Races Registration Form (National Register Bulletin 16A). Complete each item by marking "x" in the appropriate box or by entering the information
requested. If any item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable." For functions, architectural classification, materials, and
areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the instructions. Race additional entries and narrative items on continuation sheets (NPS Form
10-900a). Use atypewriter, word processor, or computer, to complete all items.

1 « Name of Property

historic name_ Kaumakapili Church

other names/site number TMK: 1-7-31:49

2. Location

street & number 766 North King Street not for publication N/A
city or town Honolulu vicinity  Kalihi
state Hawaii code HI county Honolulu code 003 zZip code 96817

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, | hereby certify that this » nomination request for
determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Races and meets the
procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property y meets does not meet the National Register
Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant nationally ~ statewide locally. ( See continuation sheet for additional
Eomments.) , f a r>

signature bf certifying offidial » Date

State k>t Fe<i“ral agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. ( See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification

I, {lereby certify that this property is: Date of Action
.entered in the National Register
See continuation sheet.
determined eligible for the
National Register
See continuation sheet.
determined not eligible for the
National Register
removed from the National Register
other (explain)



USDINPS NRHP Regigration Fom
Kaiunakapili Church

Honolulu, Hawaii

Peoge 2

5. Classification
Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply)
X private
public-local
public-State
public-Federal

Category of Property

(Check only one box)

X building(s)
district
site
structure
object

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions)
Cat: Religion

Current Functions (Enter categories from instnjctions)

Ca: Rdigion
7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

Late-Gothic Reviva

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property Is not part of a multiple property listing.)

NA

Number of Resources within Property

Contributing Noncontributing
1 2 buildings
0 0 sites
0 0 structures
0 0 objects
1 2 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register 0

b, religious facility - church

b; religious facility - church

Materials
(Enter categories from Instructions)

foundation Concrete
rod  Ceament adbedos
wdls Wood, Stucco

other

Narrative Description (Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria

(Mari( "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing)

_A Property is associated with events ttiat tiave made a
significant contribution to the broad patterns of our
history.

. B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

_C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of
a type, period, or method of construction or represents
the word< of a master, or possesses high artistic values,
or represents a significant and distinguishable entity
whose components lack individual distinction.

. D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield information
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mari< "X" In all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:
X A owned by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes.

B removed from its original location.
.C a birthplace or a grave.
.D acemetery.
.E areconstructed building, object, or structure.
F acommemorative property.

.G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.
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Areas ofSignificance (Enter categories from instructions)

ARCHITECTURE

ART

ETHNIC HERITAGE (Pacific Idander)
RELIGION

Period of Significance

191011 (date of arignd condrudion) to presant
Sonificant Dates

Significant Person
(Complete if Criterion B is mari*ed above)
N/A

Cultural Affiliation
Hawaiian

Architect/Builder
(designer/architect)y Harry Livingston fH.L.) Kerr

(builder) unknown
(fabricator) N/A

Narrative Statement of Significance (Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography (Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation onfile(NPS)

preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67)

has been requested.

previously listed in the National Register

previously determined eligible by the National Register
designated a National Historic Landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #

recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #

10. Geographical Data
Acreage ofProperty  1.1125 acres.

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)

Zone Easting Northing
1 04-617250-2358250 3

4

See continuation sheet.

Verbal Boundary Description

Zone Easting Northing

Primary Location of Additional Data
X  State Historic Preservation Office
Other State agency
Federal agency
Local government
University
X Other (Name of repository):

Kaumakapili Church Archives

The nominated prapatty is a roughly redangular saped parad containing 51458 quare fedt (11125 acres)
boundaed as fdlons Begnning a the eest comea of King and Padama Sreds and running by true aamuths 228°
28 far 22175 fedt dong Pdama Sred (formerly Asylum Raoed), 325° 40 for 247.80 fed dong Kanoa Sred,
55° 40 dong Banyan Court Mall, and 145° 40 for 22000 fest dong King Sred. Theparcd isoatared an the
UTM pant liged above Induded within this parad are the Church Sanduary, the Parish Hall and tamparary

shed, the paimdaa wall and the graunds

Boundary Justification

The nominated drudure indudes the dhurch and the proparty upan which it ress These boundaries encompass
but do nat exassd, all of the praperty that has bean higorically assodated with this building.
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11. Form Prepared By

nameltitle Barbara Shidder, ALA

organization Mason Architects date 4/21/04

street & number 119 Merchant Street, Suite 501 telephone (808) 536-0556
city or town Honolulu dae Hawaii zip code 96813

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed fonn:
Continuation Sheets

Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
A sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
(Check with tiile SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner
(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

reme Kaumakapili Church
dregt & numba 766 North King Street telephone (808) 845-0908
aty or tomn Honolulu state  HI Zp aoce 96817

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response includingtiietimefor reviewing
instiuctions, gattiering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to tiie Chief, Administi-ative Services Division, National Pari< Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperxort< Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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Narrative Description

Kaumakapili Church, located & the comer of King and Pdama Streetsin Honolulu, Hawaii, was built in its
present location in 1910-11 and isthe third building in the history of this United Church of Chrigt (UCC)
congregation. The building isthe centerpiece of a48457 squarefoot (1.1125 acre) campus that aso contains
Hale Kamika{lit. "Smith Hall"), aparish hall built in 1981 and named for founding pastor Reverend Lx)well
Smith; as well as asmal temporary plywood shed a the rear of the property used by the Church administration.
An adjacent parcd containing 15,497 squarefeet is dso owned by the UCC Hawaii Conference and was the
former dte of the church parsonage. This Ste was leased for development as an goartment complex in (date?).

The Gothic Reviva-style church is the most prominent feature of the urban Kalihi-Palama neighborhood. The
bell tower segple with itsbronze finial Sands 96 feet above the surrounding properties. The campusfeatures an
expanseof grasslawn a thefi-ontof the building bordered by two paved parking lots and is surrounded by a low
dressed-basdt wall with piers a the walk and driveway openings. Thewall is agood exanple of local
craftsmanship usng avernacular materia (dressed basdlt blocks or "lavarock™).

The building is asymmetricd in plan and conggtsof the vaulted Sanctuary with an arched entry portico flanked
by two fase-buttressed towers, and a pentagond-shaped two-story Auxiliary Hall on the eest Sdeof the
dructure. A sngle-story suite of rooms containing support goaces, including the rear entry hall, the Deacon's
Office and the Choir Meeting Room abutsthe reer eevation of the building. The four-story Bell Tower onthe
west ddeof thefi-ontelevation provides acoess to the interior balcony, as well as supporting the bell & its
uppermost level. The three-story Stair Tower on the eest Sde a0 provides aooess to the bacony, es well &
visually balancing the Church faBade.

Exterior

The exterior of the structure isfinishedwith atraditional plaster-on-lath sysem usng aheavy aggregate stucco
finish coeat. The building is platform-framed with Douglas fir usng 1 V2' x 7 ~U" wood suds bearing on
concrete perimeter walls. Theroof structure, ground floor, second floor, and balcony are likewisewood framed.
The ground floor is devated abovethe surrounding grade about threeto four feet, creating acrawl goace The
foundation condggsof aconcrete perimeter wall with intermediate concrete footings supporting timber piers.
Small rectangular openings covered with metd grills ventilate the crawl goece below the church. The stairsat
the front and rear entries and the eest comer of the building are concrete.

The stegp aross-gable roof above the vaulted Sanctuary was originally covered with diamond-pattemed  trandte
tile. This materia was replaced sometime prior to 1965 with the current roofing materia: cement adbestios
shingles. Theroofingislaid over 2x6 wood decking on wood rafters. The steeply pitched bell tower spire is
covered with apainted shingle of the same materia gpplied directly over 1x6 wood decking onwood framing.
The stair tower originally had aflat built-up roof, however thiswas replaced with asingle-ply membranein the
2003 regtoration. The Auxiliary Hall roof features overhanging eavesand two louvered dormers on the front
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(south) and rear (north) devations. The rear partion of the building hasan agphalt shingle-covered hipped roof
with gablet vents

The crendlated paragpds of the entry portico and the two towers are capped with a wood coping. The
downspoutsad leader heads were originally painted shest metal; these were recently replaced with copper. The
original woodenfiniala the bel tower wasreplaced in the late 1930's with the solid bronze ane mounted on the
soire In addition to the bell tover pire, there are four pre-cas conarete pinnade ornaments offleur delis
desgn and three entry portico pargpet omaments smilar to the pinnade ornaments

The eave soffit and the calling a the entry portico are painted 34" x 5' tongue and groovedding with a
midpoint center groove, nailed to wood rafters The caling a the entry portico is pitched a the center section,
following the line of the parapet. The roof drainsfor thetowers entry portico, and the uppe roofs pass through
to the crawl space wherethey are consdlidated. Originally all the drains discharged through two outlets ane
located a the base of each tower, abaut 6' abovegrade They have been redidributed through new drainage
lines to drain out the badk of the church behind the chair loft.

Interior

The interior of the Sanctuary features an " Akron Plan™ layout with curved seeting diredted toward the pulpit in
the north-wes comer and a curved balcony along therear. The ceiling in the sanduary isa gegp crossvault
with attic gpaces above the caling. The roof isframedwith eght decorative wood trusss that radiatefr oma
central point. The balcony is supendedfr omthe decor ative wood trusses with four 1-1/2" diamgea sed rods
that provide an uninterruptedfl oor gpace benesth the balcony. The cellings throughout the church, induding the
undergde of thebalcony, are painted 34" x 5' tongue and groove V-joint sding with a canter groove

A wood base, wainsoot, and wall trim run continuoudy around theinterior of the Sanctuary. The magjority of the
interior wallsare painted 34" x 5' tongue and groove V+joint Sding with a center groove on wood guds Inthe
Sanctuary the walls above the upper wall trim arefinishedwith a painted plager. All thewindows have wood
silisthat align with and match thewall trim and wainsoat's profile. The door casngs around the pointed-arch
entry doorways alo have praofilesthat match thet of the wainscot. The original pews were curved and radiated
outwards in semidrdes, with thefir stthree rows made continuousfr omsde-aide to Sde-aide The balcony
repedts this semidrcular form.

The choir loft was located outdde of the main Sanctuary space intoits own alcove on the mauka (lit. " toward
the mountains”; in this case, north) wall. It isframedwith a large cassd wood opening, with decor ative wood
corbdled brackets a the comers. The eest wall of the sanctuary conggts of four largeradl-up doorsthat open up
to the Auxilliary Hall.

The floor s throughaut the church are paintedflush-jointtongue and groove wood decking. Thefloor of the
Sanctuary dopes toward the pulpit accentuating the Sghtlines The aidesin the ssnduary and a the altar are
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carpeted. In the other aress, including the Bacony and the Choair L oft, the woodfl oorsare painted. At the entry
portico, tile hes been installed over the wood decking.

The pentagond-shaped Auxiliary Hall is atwo-story goece with amezzanine that hes three end bays on eech
level. These bays could be usad as smal meeting rooms or dassrooms. The mezzanine is accessed by adtair
with railings, pickets and newe pogscrafted of wood with adark stain.

The interior doors are multi-paneled painted solid-stock wood. The jambs and caangs are dso painted wood.
The exterior doors a the front elevation are paired doors with apointed (or Gothic) arch; those a therear
elevation are sngle doors with an arched-top dained glasstransom. The original decorative brass door hardware
still remains. All of the original windows, including the three large arched windows of the Sanctuary, were
fabricated with sained and leaded glass, but due to vanddism in the late 60's they were replaced with primary-
colored Plexiglas pands. Only the "Good Shepherd” window on the 'Ewa (west) Sde remained snce it was
protected by wired glass.

The church isnaturally ventilated through operable windows and louvered openings in the towers. The majority
of the windows are double hung including the arched windows of the Auxiliary Hall. All the window frames
and casings are painted wood. The vents of the bell tower and the Sair tower are mede of wood louvers sheethed
with copper & the exterior.

The original church construction included eectrical wiring and lighting. The Sanctuary islit with brasswall-
mountedfixturesand achanddier hung from the intersecting point of the decorative wood beams. The
remaining origina fixturesinclude celling mounted incandescent lightfixturesin the towers.

Early Ciianges

In the late 30's the church exterior recaived significant repairs.’ Most likely the resuU of extensve re-plastering,
thiswork subtly dtered the original gopearance of the building. The plagtered fa se buttresses were
reconstructed inadightly different manner and severd piecesof horizonta trim were removed. The pinnacle
omaments & the bell tower were simplified, losing much of their detail and articulation.

The original entry portico had three gothic arches that gorang from paired Corinthian columns, to single
matching pilagters a the sdewalls. Aspart of the remodding in the 1930's, these coliunnswere removed ad
thewall re-plastered, simplifying the facade 0 the arches spring from the ground line.

In the period after World War n, the dear finish onthe interior Douglasfir wallsand woodwork was painted

with lighter colors because the dark stain was perceived as gloomy. An auminumflakemearine primer was
utilized to adherethe paint coat over the origina varnish.

Fhone convarsation betwean Revarend David Twigg and John Fullmer, Januaty 22, 1993,
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Later Changes

The origind roofing materid wes arichly pettemned trangte tile. The hip lineswere aticulated with half-round
tileswhile the horizonta ri dgel i neswere continuous haf-round shest metd forms. These roofing pettems were
repested in the bell tower gegdle that hed a more daboratef i ni al then the exising one The roofing wes
replaced with the current camant adoedtios shingle someime after 1965. Around this same time, the origind
curved ok paws induding those in the bacony, were rgdaced due to termite damege

In the early 70's, the mogt Significant dienge to the church's gapearance occurred when vandds desfroyed the
omate dained gass windows All but two of the main windowson the west Sde were replacad with colored
plastic panes Even the daborate tracary of thetwo large gothic windows on the north and south devaions were
replaced with vertica 2x4 wood mullions.

Theorigind pipe organ, mece in London, aso sufferedfromtermite damege 1n 1983, the orgen wis repleced
dthough the decorative pipes located behind the pul pit, remain in place. The new dectronic argen pipes wae
located in the Deacon's Room, directly benind the original orgen pipes, while the organitsdlf is located in front
of the chair loft.

Additions and Renovations

During the early 70's, the Kdihi-Pdama Free Clinic (acharitable medicd organization sarving the indigent
population) wes edeblished within the Sanduary. The Auxiliary Hall and mezzanine on the eedt Sde of the

weae converted into various offices and exam rooms The clinic moved into new facilities in the mid-
90s The gramdfloorof the bell tower wes endased for use as a literacy-tutoring dass'oom; and the beee of the
dair tower wes dtered for use as a Bride's Room during weddings

In 1981, the parish hdl - "Hde Kamika' - wasbuilt on the church grounds The formerfreestandingparish hall,
built in 1926, wes demalished. The new parish hdl induded wakways, planters, ramps ad new dairwaysthat
egeged the origina church dmcture around its eestem devation. A ramp & the reer of the Sructure provided
acoess tothenav hdll, eswell as the Sanduary.

In 2003, a comprehandve restoration of the Sanduary wes undarteken and involved replagtering portions of the
building's exterior; re-roofing; extendve wood repars particularly to the windows, doors, and interior wansoot
and moldings, hardwere repairs, and new dectrica sarvice and wiring. New paws weare commissoned to match
the original curved Akron Flan layout; a date-of-the-art sound sygem introduced; and the origind organ pipes
were restored, induding re-gilding the gold-leaffleur de lis. The Good Shgahard window wes paindakingly
restored and forty-two new saned glass windows were aregted bessd on the historic phatogrgohns and glass
dhads
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Narrative Statement of Significance

Kaumakapili Church, acultural and architectura landmark in an inner-city neighborhood, standsas a symbol of
the enduring vaues of Native Hawaiian Christianity. The church meets National Regiger Criterion A for its
associationswith the establishment and growth of Protestant Christianity in Hawaii. The church was established
in 1838 to sarvethe makaaanana or common people of the idands, and remains predominantly Hawaiian in
language and affiliation. Itis significant under Criterion Cinthe aress of Art and Architecture, as an excdlent
example of Late Gothic Reviva religious architecture and arare example of the Akron Plan inHawaii. The
building is the work of mader architect, Henry Livingston (H. L.) Kerr and retainsits integrity of location,
design, setting, materias, workmanship, feeling, and association. The stained and leeded glass window on the
west wall of the sanctuary, referred to as the Good Shepherd window, is the largest and most daborate example
of American at glass(oftencaled "Tiffany-style") in Hawaii. The window was desgned and fabricated by
former Tiffany-studio atisans- G.S. de Luz and P.S. Spenocer of New Rochelle, New Y ork - &s part of the
original church congtruction.

The first Christian missonaries arrived in the Kingdom of Hawaii in 1820 as representatives of the Boston-
based American Board of Commissoners for Foreign Missons (ABCFM). Thosefirst seven missonaries (and
their wives) arrived a afortuitoustime, as the year before King Kamehamehan had abolished the kapu system
(the traditional religious proscriptions for nearly every agoect of Hawaiian life). Protestant Christianity quickly
took hold inthe idands. Encouraged by their initial success the ABCFM sent even more missonary
"companies' over the next twenty-four years. The missionaries founded schools, as well as churches Literacy
was a primary concern of the missions, in addition to religious converson and oversseing the generd well-being
of the Hawaiian people.

Kaumakapili was esablished in 1838, eighteen years after the first missonaries arrived inHawai'i. Thefirst
church in Honolulu, Kawaiahao,Kawaahao served the Hawaiian aristocracy (ali 7); the second church,
Kaumakapili, was founded for the meka'ainana, or common people of the idands. Congregationd minister
Reverend Hiram Bingham organized Kaumakapili Church on April 1,1838 on lands donated by High Chief
Abner Paki and High Chiefess Laura Konia. The Reverend Lowell Smith and wife, Abigail Tenny Smith,
arrived in Honolulu in 1833, as membersof the Sixth Company. Reverend Smith served as the first minister of
Kaumakapili Church until his retirement in 1869. During this time, Abigail opened aday school for Hawaiian
children that was eventualy atended by children of other ethnic backgrounds. In 1856, it became a govemment
school and was the first "common school” inthe idand to teach in English The Smithshed five children, only
two of whom survived infancy: Emma Louise (1844-1920) and Lowell Augustus (1850-1891).

2 RianmaWilliams. Honolulu's Kaumakapili Church, A Truly Hawaian Place. (Honolulu: Unpubished menusript from the
Kaumekeapili Church Archives, 2003), 3.
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Thefirst Kaumekapili Church building wes dedicated on August 29,1839. 1t wes condmated of adabe block
walswith atraditiona thetched roof and could accommodete 2,500 people” The church good on Berelania
Sreat & the ed of Smith Street, which was nemed after the Revarend Smith.

This origind building wes replaced with a much larger church that wees dedicated on Sgotlamber 3,1881. The
soond church westwo tories and medke of brick, wood and gained glass It hed two |ofty saires thet were
landmarks to arriving ships Dr. C. M. Hyde wes the architect dthough the design wes greatly influenced by
King Kdakauawho requested the incluson of thetwo degales The church wees desroyed in the greet
Chinatownfireof 1900. The bricksof the bumed church were sold to Jgoenese and Chinese contrectars for
2,725 and the land of the church wes sold.”

In 1901, the property for the presant church wes aguired through an exdhange of property with the Bishop
Edae The naw 72000 squere foot Ste was three times larger then the prior church areal It wes divided into two

parcds - thefirst,an irregularly dhgped tract of 51,000 square feet to house the new Sanduary building,
incorporated the entire block bounded by King Sredt, Kukui Street (now Kanoa Stret), Asylum Roed (now
Pdama Strest), and anew drest which cut into the sevanteen aores tha the Bishop Edate hed just sub-divided
(PuaLane). The ssood parad of about 21,000 squere feet withfrontagedong Kukui (Kanog) Stredt, wasto be

st addefor a parsonege

During the ten years thetfiindswere bang raisad to build the new church, atemporary wooden dhgpd wes s
up on Audtin Lane behind the old Pdama Fire Station. The congregation a<o utilized Centrd Union Church for
worship savices Revarend Nehamiah Lono ad his assdant. Revarend Heary K. Rogpog, officiated in the
temporary quarters Unde their guidance, the Church devdoped adrong emnpheds on Sundey Schod minisry A

Ground wes broken for the third (end presant) church building on May 7,1910. On Augudt 6,1910 Mrs. Water
F. Frear, wife of the Govemor of the Territory and grand-daughter of Reverend Lowd | and Abigall Smith,
sH=ead the comagore into the foundation of the church. The box wes said to contain documats of
contemporary higory, including copies of the Advertiser, Nupgoe Kuokea, ad Tre Friend, Hawvaian addresses
and records of the recant Hawalian Evangdicd Assodaion's Kailua Convention; photogrgahs of the Govamnors
Dole, Cater and FHear ad of the desoandants of the Rev. Smith; plansfor the new church; and a Bibe** The
church was dedicated on dune 25, 1911

Honolulu architect H.L. (Harry Livingston) Kerr desgned the church in the Gathic-Revivd gyle, popular
among religious buildings built & the time. Kerr incorporated Late Gothic Revivd dyle damats into the
desgn, including pointed (or "Gothic") arch openings a the entry portico and lowerfloorwindows and fdse

N Spenoar Mason Architects. Kaumakapili Church: Exiging Condition Report (Prepered for the Congregtion of Kaumiakapili Church,
1993), 2

"Mbid.

A Rama Williams.

A Hondlulu Advertiser.
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buttresses, crendlations and finials a the towers to emphasze the verticality of the Sructure. The architect's
sketch of the church's front eevation was published in the Pacific Commercid Advertiser in 1910, when
ground was broken for the new building. Kerr began his architectura practice in New York Statein 1833 & the
age of twenty. He practiced on the west coast (Southem Califomiaand Portland) between 1835 and 1897, and
moved to Hawaii in 1897. By 1930, Kerr had desgned more than 900 buildings in Hawaii, including landmerks
such asthe McCandless Building, the Y okohama Specie Bank Building, the boys and girl's schodls at the Mid
Pacific Ingtitute, and the Academy of the Sacred Hearts.".

Other Gothic Revival churchesbuilt in the idands during this period include Sacred Heart Church (1914) in
Manoa, and the Wai'oli Hui'ia Congregationd Church (1912) in Hande, Kauali; both of those sructures are
listed on the National Regider of Historic Places. Though the Gothic-Reviva style of the chiu-ch was not
uncommon for Hawaii churchesof the time, Kaumakapili Church's plan was unique. Unlike traditional Gothic
churchesthat have asymmetrica cruciform plan, Kaumakapili hesa centraized "Akron Plan" Cenfralized
churcheswere designed "to house large congregations in acomfortable auditorium with good sight lines." The
chief characteridtic of the Akron Plan is alarge open goace, the "rotunda’ with curved seeting directed toward
the pulpit or podium, surrounded by smaler dasssooms on one or two leves. These dassooms open onto the
rotunda by means of folding doors or diding shuttersthat allowed adjacent rooms to be opened to the
auditorium o that church members could recaive religious instruction. The design was named for the city of
Akron, Ohio, where the plan was first usad in the First Methodist Episcopa Church (LewisMiller, Walter
Blythe, and Jacob Shyder, 1866-1870). Thousandsof Akron Plan churcheswere built throughout the country
between 1870 and the First World War. lo

Large dained glass windows are acharacteridtic of Late Gothic Reviva architecture, and Kaumakapili Church
fedtiv-es the largest, and most daborate, American art glass (or "Tiffany-style") windowsin Hawaii. The
American art glasstradition used opaescent sresky glass, often multi-layered, to achieve effects that the older
dyles usad paint, smdler pieces and varying shedes to achieve. The origina stained glass windowswere a
memoria from Emma Smith Dillingham to her parentsLowell and Abigail Smith. The windowswere desgned
and fabricated by G.S. de Luzand P.S. Spencer of New Rochelle, New Y ork aspart of the original church
congtruction. De Luz and Spencer sarved asdesignersin Louis Comfort Tiffany's New York sudios before
striking out ontheir own. Their Sgnature gopears in the lowerright-handcomer of the right lancet.

The main window is comprised of threetall lancet pands crowned by a"rose" window fesaturing quatrefoil
designs. The lancets feature atriptych with thefiguresof two disciples (John and James) on the left; Mary and
the Christ child ontheright; and Jesus Christ asthe Good Shepherd in the center pand. The detail of the shesp

John William Sdadl, ed, Men of Hawaii, Vdume|| (Honolulu: Honolulu Star-Bulletin, Ltd., 1921), 233, ad GeogeF. Ndllist, od,
Men of Hawaii, KaiwmeF (Honolulu; Honolulu Star-Bulletin, 1930), 281.
A Fhone conversation bawean Reverend David Twigg and Jon FRulhner, January 22, 1993,
" Roger G. Kenedy, Americen Churdhes (New Y ork: Sewart, Tabor and Chang, 1982), 244.
0 John Knox Ser, ed.,, Rdigious Buildingsfor Today (New Y ork: McGraw-Hill, 1957), 5.
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is done udng a morefraditional painted syle however, thefl eshof thefiguresis done by usng tranducent
anamd pants in many layers and usng multiple plates of cathedrd glass both ingde ad out. Theingde plating
gopears to be a pale doubleralled cathedrd amber.Kokomo Opeaesoat Gass in Indiana fabricated the
original gass - ad produced the dained gass usd in the 2003 restoration of the windows

The church played avita rolein the spiritud and civic life of the community during the trangtion from

Kingdom to Republic to U.S. Territory and, eventudly. Statehood. In the post-WWII era, damogrgphic dhanges
affected the Church. Many mambas moved to suburben aress of Honolulu, replaced by recent immigrants from
Adsaand the South Pacific. Memberdhip dwindled dramaticdly and the church sruggled to day goen™ In the
1970s unde the leedarship of Revarend Wong, Kaumekapili Church revitdized itsaf by reeching out to the
surrounding community. The ministry established a "free goreé' and afood berk (thefirstin the idands), as well
asafreedantd ad medicd clinic offering family sarvices Drug and dcohol trestment programs and adullt
education dasses incdluding literacy tutoring, were ingtituted. The Sanciuary wes gpened for use by other
Congregations, many of them non-English gpesking.

By 1993, the clinic was moved off-site and the Free Stare rdocated to the edjacant Paish Hall. The
congregation initiated a tenryear effort thet raised more then $2 million for the restoration of the church
sanctuary. Necessary repairs addressad sructural and leskage problems, restoration and recredtion of the dained
dass windows, improved sound ad dectricd sygams and improved accessihility. The church wes rededicated
in January 2004 for another 100 years of service

" Water Judson. Letter to Kaumekapili Church, dated November 2, 2002
'2 Riana Williams, 24.
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Figure 2 Kaumakapili Church, Ste Plan
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Figure 3: Kaumakapili Church, Graund Floor Plan
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Figure 4: Kaumakapili Church, Upper Floor Plan
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Houre 5. Kaumekapili Church, ca 1911
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FHgure 6: Kaumekapili Church, Interior, ca 2004
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This property i slisted i ntheNational Register of Historic

Places i naccordance with theattached nom nation documentation
subject tothefollowing exceptions, exclusions, or anendnents,
notwi thstanding t heNational Park Service certification included
in thenom nation documentation.

Signature of./t he Keeper

Amrended Itfens i n Nom nation:

S gni fi cance:
Criterion A and the areas of significance Ethtiic Heritage & Religion are deleted from the nomination.
[The significance of the property under Criterion A has notbeen justified. The nomination needs to
directly explain the role and importance of the church during the time period represented by this building.
The current narrative provides detailed information regarding the historic development of the congregation
up to 1910, but upon reaching the time period of the completion and dedication of the church building, the
discussion immediately moves to an analysis of the architect and his contributions [8.2—8.3] (Criterion C).
The narrative never really returns to outline the significant role, work or efforts of the church in the
community/state during the period after 1910. When itdoes return to a discussion of the role of the
church [8.4], the text merely states that: "The church played a vital role in the spiritual and civic life of the
community during the transition from Kingdom to Republic to U.S. Territory and, eventually Statehood,"
without any explanation of how. What exactly was the role of the church in post-1910 religious
development in the community? Who exactly did the church serve, and how was that seen as unique,
different, or significant in relationship to the operations of other local congregations or social institutions?
The nomination cannot rely solely on the fact that the church served as a place of religious services for a
community. The nomination needs to address the context for ethnic heritage and religious significance in
much more depth rather than relying on the history preceding the completion of the current building. The
focus of the contextual development might look at the role of the church in fostering or supporting ethnic
cultural identity, if that was the case, orin the role of the church as an important nexus for religious/social
outreach within the community. (The following, taken from church promotional materials, might provide
one avenue for discussion: In the late twenties and early fifties, Kaumakapili was known as the "Queen of
the Hawaiian Churches" for she had begun missions and sister churches' relationships as her witness to
the community.)

(continued)



Period of Significance:

The period of significance is revised to read: 1910-1939.

[The current documentation fails to adequately justify taking the period of significance up to the present day.
The National Register criteria require that a property achieving significance within the last fifty years must
document exceptional significance. In order to justify exceptional significance the presentation of the historic
context for a property must be extremely thorough. The development of such a context, especially for the less-
than-fifty year period, normally requires a fairly detailed comparative framework in which the relative significance
of one property or person can be assessed relative to others that may have made similar contributions during
the same period. Seldom will mere continued use and function be suitable grounds for taking a period of
significance up to the very recent past. In the case of the Kaumakapili Church the appropriate period of
significance under NR Criterion C should reflect the dates of construction of the church [1910-1911], and the
dates of the last major historic renovations [c. 1939].

Cultural Affiliation:
This block is to be left blank unless a property is nominated under NR Criterion D.

Geographical Data
The U.T.IVI. Coordinates should be revised to read: 4 617551 2358167

These clarifications were confirmed with the Hawaii SHPO office.

DI STRI BUTI ON:
Nati onal Register property file
Nom nating Authority (without nom nation attachment)
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STATE & GONTY: HAWAI I, Honolulu

DATE RECE!l VED. 3/ 26/ 08 DATE G- PEND NG LI ST: 4/ 16/ 08
DATE G- 16TH DAY: 5/01/08 DATE GF 45TH DAY: 5/ 09/ 08
DATE G- VEEKLY LI ST:

REFERENCE NUMBER 08000372

REASONS FOR REVI EW

APPEAL: N DATA PRCBLEM N LANDSCAPE: N LESS THAN 50 YEARS, N
OHR Y PDIL: N PER CD N PROGRAM UNAPPROVED, N
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ACCEPT RETURN REJECT DATE

ABSTRACT/ SUMVARY COMMENTS:

The Kaumakapili Church is significant at the state level under National Register Criterion C in the areas of
Art and Architecture. Completed In 1910, the stucco-clad, wood-frame church is an excellent example of
late Gothic Revival style church design. With its numerous pointed arch openings, mock buttresses,
crenellated parapets, and vaulted ceiling the church stands as afine representative example of the late
Gothic Revival style employed in Hawaii during the early twentieth century. Based on the "Akron plan,”
the design was the work of noted regional architect Harry Livingston Kerr and featured fine period art
glass windows.
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